SOMERSET HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD & INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP

Minutes of the Meeting of the Somerset Health and Wellbeing Board held in the John Meikle Room at Deane House on 30 January 2022 at 2:30 p.m.

Board Members in Attendance: Cllr Bill Revans (Chair), Mr Paul von der Heyde (Co-Vice Chair), Cllr Adam Dance (Co-Vice Chair), Prof Trudi Grant, Cllr Janet Keen, Cllr Gill Slocombe, Cllr Lucy Trimnell, Mr Jonathan Higman, Mr Bernie Marden, Dr Robert Weaver, Mr Peter Lewis, Cllr Chris Booth, Ms Emily Fulbrook (substituting for Ms Mel Lock)

Board Members in Attendance Virtually: Ms Hilary Robinson, Ms Judith Goodchild, Ms Katherine Nolan, Cllr Brian Hamilton, Sup Richard Turner, Ms Claire Winter,

Other Elected Members in Attendance: Cllr Heather Shearer

Other Elected Members in Attendance Virtually: Cllr Andy Kendall, Cllr Federica Smith-Roberts

Officers in Attendance: Lou Woolway, Alison Bell, Meg Coakeley, Jasmine Wark, Alice Munro, Mark Leeman, Richard Selwyn (NHS), Andrew Melhuish, Terrie Brazier, Jonathan Hallows

Officers in Attendance Virtually: Gillian Keniston-Goble (Healthwatch), Nicola Miles (SCC), Jai Vick (Mendip District Council), Sarah Stillwell (Sedgemoor District Council), Lee Howell (Somerset & Devon Fire)

Apologies for absence – Agenda Item 1

Apologies were received from Cllr Ros Wyke, Cllr Tessa Munt, Mel Lock (who was substituted by Emily Fulbrook), and Maria Heard (NHS); the following gave their apologies but attended virtually: Judith Goodchild, Hilary Robinson, Cllr Brian Hamilton

Declarations of Interest - Agenda Item 2

The list of declared interests on the website was noted. There were no new declarations, albeit Cllr Janet Keen noted as matter of transparency with respect to Agenda Item 9 that she will no longer be a board member of Homes in Sedgemoor effective 31 March 2023.

Minutes from the meeting held on 28 November 2022 - Agenda Item 3

The minutes were approved as an accurate representation of the meeting held on 28 November 2022.

Public Question Time - Agenda Item 4

There were no public questions or statements submitted.

Verbal Update on the Future of the HWB & ICP Board - Agenda Item 5

The Chair invited Prof Trudi Grant, Director of Public Health, to give the verbal update. She stated that there will be a more formal discussion at the next meeting, but she wanted to reassure that previous discussions held as a Board are continuing. Somerset Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) and the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) are now acting as a joint board but in April will actually become the multi-agency board for Somerset with oversight of all determinants of health and wellbeing, as well as having the ability to make the connections between a healthy lifestyle and positive health outcomes which was previously not possible to do. It will be decided whether to renew or refresh the Improving Lives strategy going forward; this was a 10-year strategy, but a much longer-term vision for Somerset may be needed (perhaps 30 years). Draft Terms of Reference (TOR) are being worked on; once this is further defined, the TOR will be forwarded to members of this Board and brought to the next meeting for endorsement. That will be followed by a formal proposal that will go to the Integrated Care Board (ICB) and to the Full Council in May, with the formal TOR then ready for the new multi-agency board. It is likely that this new board will be bigger than usual, as the interests of both boards need to be brought together, and there are many people and organisations interested in what we are trying to achieve.

Lou Woolway, Deputy Director of Public Health, noted that the agenda for the March meeting of the HWB & ICP will be quite fluid due to the current situation, as will be the scheduling of future meetings.

The recommendation was that the Somerset Health and Wellbeing Board & Integrated Care Partnership noted the verbal update.

The Board approved this recommendation.

Health and Care Strategy Verbal Update - Agenda Item 6

The Chair invited Jonathan Higman, ICB Chief Executive, to give the verbal update. He noted the five main points he wanted to update:

- A high-level document for the Health and Care Strategy was brought to this Board's last meeting; this was published in December and was also placed on the SCC website with a link from the ICB. It has yet to be finalised, but the timescale for development of the full document is the beginning of April, and then it will come to the next HWB & ICP meeting finalisation.
- In parallel, further engagement has been taking place, including the launch of a survey called "Building a Healthier Somerset Together" which closes on 5th March. It asks the population for feedback on their priorities within the five published aims. They have commissioned an analysis of the results.
- The NHS is undertaking a planning process, which began with planning guidance setting out the national priorities from the government and continues with developing a detailed five-year plan and a two-year operational plan.
- To support the implementation of the Health and Care Strategy, the first meeting of a Collaboration Forum was held last week; it is an executive group made up of the chief executives from across the system and is a forum where the delivery of the Health and Care Strategy can be prioritised. A People Board for Somerset has also been established to examine the workforce plan, which is essential to support any strategy.
- In conjunction with Somerset County Council, the "My Time to Care" campaign was launched last week, which focuses on the recruitment and retention of workers in the care sector. Also, a formal stroke consultation was launched on 30 January following approval by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at the Care Board, for which they are keen to get public feedback on the proposals contained in it.

The Chair invited the Board to make comments. Cllr Janet Keen asked if the planning process for the operational strategy would focus on how the hospital foundation trusts communicate, given that their communication is not always good regarding patients treated at different sites. It was replied that with the potential upcoming merger of the two Somerset FTs, a proposal has been considered for an integrated health care record across Somerset, which is critical to enable integrated care across the county. There is currently a programme called <u>SIDeR - NHS Somerset</u> which joins up records. Cllr Gill Slocombe agreed that data sharing was vital but was not always happening, and she used her own example of having to inform many different people at different sites of her allergies. She noted that many facilities did not have them on record, which could in some cases lead to a patient's death. It was responded that there is a joined-up record system that includes hospitals and primary care, but this has not been rolled out everywhere yet.

The recommendation was that the Health and Wellbeing Board & Integrated Care Partnership noted the verbal update.

The Board approved this recommendation.

Somerset Health Protection Forum Assurance Report - Agenda Item 7

The Chair invited Alison Bell, Strategic Manager and Public Health Consultant, and Meg Coakeley, Service Manager-Health Protection, to make the presentation. They noted that the purpose of the report was to assure the HWB & ICP, as well as the Director of Public Health, that there is a system in place to protect the health of the residents of Somerset.

- It was defined that, "Health Protection seeks to prevent or reduce harm caused by communicable diseases and minimise the health impact from environmental hazards such as chemicals and radiation", and it was noted that much knowledge about this has been gained by dealing with the pandemic.
- The Health Protection Forum includes the County and District Councils, NHS Somerset and the UK Health Security Agency, with all partners working together on communicable diseases, environmental hazards, infections prevention and control, resilience, screening and immunisation. There are 11 NHS screening programmes and an all-age NHS immunisation programme.
- The response to incidents has changed; the national policy shifted in 2022 to a "living with Covid" approach, and there has been more reporting of infectious disease from the population. There has also necessarily been a system-wide catch-up for health protection workstreams that were on hold during the height of the pandemic.
- The key areas of success included:
 - The response to communicable diseases like avian influenza, mpox, and blood-borne viruses, as well as evaluation of air quality;
 - The collaborative approach toward infection, prevention and control, including development of a risk assessment to support the safe discharge of care home residents (this was submitted to the National Infection Prevention Society Impact Awards and won gold);
 - The creation of the Somerset Local Health & Care Resilience Partnership;
 - Securing funding to undertake a study of barriers to accessing and taking up immunisations;
 - Catching up with the backlog of most programmes.
- The key areas for improvements included:
 - Breast cancer screening, where the catch-up date has been moved to February 2023;
 - Agreeing locations for the Radiological Monitoring Unit capacity;
 - Childhood immunisation coverage;
 - Infection prevention and control, particularly gram-negative bloodstream infections and scabies outbreaks;
 - TB treatment completion, where despite a low incidence of TB in Somerset, treatment completion (68.8%) remains lower than national and international standards.

- A diagram/organisational chart of the Health Protection Board and its subgroups was presented; it was pointed out that the pandemic demonstrated the big impact of working together, so this year an Integrated Care Health Protection Board will work differently than before and sustain collaborative work. This diagram will be updated, as in 2024 the 11 immunisation programmes will be delegated to the ICB.
- The focus of 2023 is to ensure the strengthening of a whole-system approach to health protection. The Health Protection Forum will retain the capacity to respond and build a stronger system in the future. The following priorities were identified to assure the Director of Public Health that suitable arrangements are in place to protect the health of Somerset's population:
 - Maximizing immunisation uptake
 - Filling health protection commissioning gaps
 - Communicable disease framework
 - Refresh Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
 - Transform system-wide communication of outbreaks to cover all diseases
 - Health Needs Assessment for health protection, which will inform the commissioning going forward
 - Transforming the IPC across the system
 - Translating the TB service specification into the clinical service deliver
 - Migrant health, which is an issue with many foreign workers being recruited, many of whom come from countries with high rates of infectious diseases and possibly less robust immunisation programmes

The Chair invited Board members to discuss and raise questions about the presentation.

Cllr Chris Booth enquired about breast cancer screening and asked what the initial target date was for catching up; it was replied that initially this was September 2022, but because of the inability to have in-person appointments during Covid, this has not been met. Figures as a percentage are not available, but 200 women have not yet had their screening. Cllr Slocombe noted that there is over a 36-month wait, and new patients are being taken first, which leaves some patients very worried about relapse and needs to be rectified. It was replied that this feedback will be taken to NHS clinical teams to get answers, with it being noted that it has been hard to balance all needs in the face of a national shortage of radiographers. ACTION

Cllr Slocombe raised the issue of Covid vaccines, observing that she, like many people, needs to have the Astra Zeneca vaccine because of her allergies; however, this is now unavailable, and therefore many people have not had boosters. It was responded that Astra Zeneca had been removed because there was a better vaccine for the fourth dose, and there are arrangements for people with adverse reactions to any vaccine;

but Cllr Slocombe advised that she had been waiting three months for answer. It was replied that there is surely a publicised pathway for allergy sufferers, which will be investigated and an answer put out by early in February. ACTION

Cllr Keen commented that when the Covid vaccine was first introduced there was resistance to it in certain quarters; she wondered if these patterns were being repeated now with child vaccination due to cultural, religious and other motives. She asked if there were the budget and means to persuade such groups. It was replied that there is an awareness of 'sustained myths' in certain communities, which may be due to certain documentation being published only in English; so work is being done with those communities and parents. There is also an issue of access as regards complicated immunisation schedules where vaccines are offered only during working hours, making it difficult for working parents to take their children. Work is being done with the ICB and primary care providers in an attempt to hold more clinics on Saturdays, but it is difficult due to less staff working on those days. There will be more control once the ICB is responsible for commissioning. Cllr Keen asked for confirmation that where there is resistance, the emphasis is on persuasion and not penalties such as refusing childcare or school to unvaccinated children, which would be quite unacceptable. It was replied that this immunisation is not a requirement for those services in the UK, and it is necessary to act in good will, although that might change. There are not enough resources or data in Somerset to be able to do targeted persuasion, but some practice nurses and managers are calling certain parents in a small pilot programme.

Cllr Brian Hamilton raised the issue of the monitors around the county which measure particulate emissions and asked if the rise in numbers is due to increased traffic, or if there has been a rise even when traffic levels fall due to wood burners. He asked if there was some way to analyse the data further. It was replied that there are five monitors in Somerset which measure particulates and weather; there will not be enough data until a year passes to be able to extrapolate the data and understand it better. Traffic dropped significantly during Covid, while this year the level is at 31/32 compared to a national average of around 40, meaning it is of good quality. Somerset has the highest Aga ownership in the country, but it does not appear that the data can distinguish between wood burning particulates and others. This will be investigated. ACTION

Cllr Hamilton also pointed out that there are now a considerable number of NHS staff arriving from other countries and asked about their immunisations, querying whether they would be refused employment in the UK if they did not have them. It was responded that anyone staying in the UK for more than six months must agree to tuberculosis screening; as for immunisations, it is not clear what the employment terms are, but Public Health is doing their best to ensure the health of these workers. Cllr Heather Shearer asked where in the public health brief would be the responsibility for looking after people in homes with mould spores, and also asked for clarification regarding which issue it was where Somerset was performing least well. It was replied that it is with respect to gram-negative bacterial infections that Somerset has the worst rating; some of these infections are hospital-acquired, but the number remains small and the ICB infection-control team are working on the issue. As regards mould, guidance has been issued and the matter has been cascaded to housing/district council colleagues. The problem is often caused by lack of ventilation because many people cannot afford sufficient heating and therefore don't ventilate enough. Although the guidance on the issue has been sent out, it is difficult to resolve.

Lou Woolway, Deputy Director of Public Health, referenced the Health, Care and Housing paper that she would be presenting later in the meeting and noted that housing standards were something that they wanted to pursue across the housing stock and housing sector.

Cllr Lucy Trimnell commented that wood-burning stoves are a lifeline for many people, but all wood used must be kiln dried. She asked with respect to immunisations if any work is being done on a vaccine for chickenpox, and she also asked for clarification of "community onset" versus "hospital attributed". It was responded by Dr Robert Weaver that there is a chickenpox vaccine, but because chickenpox is a self-limiting disease, no vaccine is required as a vaccine would lead to more people contracting it as adults rather than gaining immunity through natural transmission. The vaccine is available, but it is complicated and requires two courses. As for hospital-attributed disease, this denotes where the disease was contracted, although it cannot always be certain if this was the origin; these infections call for different measures than those contracted in the community.

Prof Trudi Grant, Director of Public Health, noted with respect to the diagram in the presentation that the progress made since the pandemic has been incredible, and that the most pertinent element entails taking a multi-agency approach to health protection and emerging risks. This did not exist before the formation of the Health Protection Board, which has been very useful, as has the integrated health system. She thanked Alison Bell and Meg Coakeley for their sterling work.

Prof Grant also noted that a third recommendation had been added since publication of the report, i.e., the Health Protection Board is requesting to stand down the Covid public dashboard (which had been a daily report and was now weekly) due to the move toward 'living with Covid' and the previous standing down of the Covid Engagement Board. Specifically, it is recommended that the HWB & ICP approve the request to stand down the Covid dashboard and delegate authority to the Health Protection Board to stand it back up should the situation arise. The recommendation was that the Health and Wellbeing Board & Integrated Care Partnership:

- Endorsed the priorities for next year.
- Approved the report's conclusion that the Director of Public Health is assured that suitable arrangements are in place to protect the health of Somerset's population.
- Approved the request to stand down the Covid dashboard and delegate authority to the Health Protection Board to stand it back up should the situation arise.

The Board approved these recommendations.

Safeguarding Children Partnership Report - Agenda Item 8

The Chair invited Jasmine Wark, Business Manager-SSCP, to make the presentation, with Claire Winter, Director of Children's Services, and Sup Dickon Turner, Avon and Somerset Police, available online to assist in answering questions.

The Somerset Safeguarding Children Partnership's Twelve-Monthly Report for 2021-2022 was published in October 2022. Key developments during that time included:

- Commissioned a Thematic Child Safeguarding Practice Review about nonaccidental injuries to infants
- Devised a Children and Young People's Plan
- Designed a Partnership Information Sharing Agreement
- Updated and renamed the Neglect Toolkit to the Family Strengths and Needs Toolkit
- Refined the Rapid Review process
- Published a new Somerset Child Exploitation Strategy
- Restructured the multi-agency process
- Promoted multi-agency learning and networking through Safeguarding Forum weeks in June and December 2021, with the December theme being how to improve engagement with fathers and male carers to support them in becoming good role models; a Forum Legacy group was also set up to focus further on this. A short video on the subject from the Youth Forum was then played for the Board.

The impact of the SSCP's work on families (understood through feedback) included:

• Increased safeguarding of unborn children through pre-birth tracking meetings

- Improvement of strategy meetings through agenda development and creation of a guidance video for attendees
- SSCP training leading to higher awareness amongst practitioners of the signs of neglect and the methods to support these families effectively
- A greater ability by practitioners to identify strengths and needs within families via the guidance provided in the Effective Support documentation
- Positive improvements across agencies following the focus on fathers and male carers
- The creation of a partnership approach with families and positive culture change around their use of language via the renaming of the Neglect Toolkit to the Family Strengths and Needs Toolkit

It was noted that the Voice of the Child in the SSCP is reflected in both their Youth Forum and the SSCP's Somerset Participation Strategy for 2022-2024. Another development this year is a Young Person's Champion, who will bring the voice of children to the SSCP's meetings and scrutiny.

There were four main priorities for 2021-2022 and progress was made on all:

- Early Help The Early Help Strategy 2021-2024 was produced, as was a oneminute guide to Early Help; a Trauma Informed Approach was developed, and free Early Help training was offered.
- Neglect There was redevelopment of the toolkit, and neglect training supported practitioner development.
- Multi-Agency Safeguarding The Forum Week focusing on Fathers and Male Carers, the roll-out of ICON, and the development of Effective Support guidance were noted.
- Child Exploitation The strategy was refreshed, the Child Exploitation Screening Tool was relaunched, and Brook Traffic Light training was held.

The current priorities for 2022-2023, much of which is based on input from young people, entail:

- Children and Young People's Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing
- Reducing bullying and promoting positive communities
- Continued focus on reducing risks to children under two years

Developments for 2022-2023 include:

- Offering more face-to-face training opportunities and a conference to build multi-agency/partner working relationships
- Redesigning learning review methodologies
- Promoting practitioner understanding of tools and documents

- Supporting practitioner understanding of the Resolving Professional Differences protocol
- Continued rollout of the Brook Traffic Light tool training on sexual abuse

Links to the SSCP's social media sites were then provided:

- Twitter @Somerset_SCP
- Facebook @somersetscp
- Newsletter <u>www.sscb.safeguardingsomerset.org.uk/newsletter/</u>

The Chair invited the Board to discuss and ask questions.

Cllr Lucy Trimnell raised the issue of social media bullying and mental health, noting that there are problems with regulation. There are also problems with children going into school very unprepared by their parents, which was exacerbated by Covid. She opined that information needs to be shared with parents in order to inform them of the standards needed. Claire Winter responded that both the benefits and the risks of social media have been recognised, and schools are doing work on this. Prof Trudi Grant added that a key part of Public Health nursing is making regular assessments via the health visitor to check each child against normal development for their age, followed by measures put in place to help with any deficiencies. This is called "Ages and Stages", and there has been a good response to it from families in Somerset. Cllr Trimnell asked if those checks were more frequent than before, or if it is just left up to the parents to recognise problems; it was replied that there are not many families who do not engage with the programme, although all information is also available online. All children develop in different ways, but it is essential that health visitors work with families on this issue.

Cllr Janet Keen noted that it had been an excellent report; regarding the recommendations in the report and full transparency, she asked if future reports should include any adverse incidents that have occurred, in order that there is evidence of the effectiveness or appropriateness. She also asked about excluded children, saying that this would be highly relevant as they are extremely vulnerable, and asked if that would be a topic at the March meeting. It was asked if she was first referring to the increase in serious harm to children in the report and a desire to include these incidents, and it was noted that the safeguarding of children who have been excluded is being considered currently by the SSCP's Quality and Performance subgroup and Education Safeguarding subgroup, with a multi-agency group of resources being drawn together. With respect to including the topic at the next meeting or not, Lou Woolway, Deputy Director of Public Health, pointed out that an update had been sent out to all Board members regarding the SEND agenda and survey in which exclusions were addressed.

Cllr Heather Shearer stated that she was happy to see the word "neglect" replaced with "strengths and needs", and she was pleased about the Voice of the Child, although the words in the report seemed too complex to have come directly from children. Claire Winter replied that the work done via Children and Young People's Plan involved children who were 10 to 12 years old and up, and they did indeed use words such as "domestic abuse", which is one of their key concerns. They often hear such terms on the news, in the press, and on social media.

Cllr Slocombe observed that she had noticed on news reports a great deal of work going on regarding problems of social media. She asked if work was being done on early diagnosis of autism, noting that many parents were angry because it had not been. Claire Winter responded with respect to bullying that there is no evidence that it is increasing, but there are higher stress levels amongst children due to unpleasant relationships; therefore, schools are doing considerable work on mental health issues and providing access to support and are very keen to work with families directly. A parents' group has been set up through social care to help parents help their own children. Jonathan Higman, ICB Chief Executive, stated with regard to autism that a great deal of work has been done over the past years, but more needs to be done, with the focus on initial assessment and follow-up. He added that the report on SEND services at schools is due to be published this week.

The recommendation was that the Health and Wellbeing Board & Integrated Care Partnership noted the Somerset Safeguarding Children Partnership's Twelve-Monthly Report.

The Board approved this recommendation.

Health, Care and Housing Report – Agenda Item 9

The Chair invited Lou Woolway, Deputy Director of Public Health, to make the presentation. She noted that this issue is a priority for this Board but is a very wide topic, so the endeavour at the moment is to determine where to start.

First, there have been two multi-agency workshops held, with a small group of officers, including Alice Munro, Consultant in Public Health, working together at a system level to further define the work programme, put together the report, and gain approval from this joint Board. Alice Munro spoke about the work in defining a set of health, care and housing principles which could be applied across all work in the county by relevant strategic and operational boards, which includes:

- A culture of doing the right thing
- An approach which is person-centred, trauma-informed, and strengths-based and considers the whole person

- Homes that are adaptable in the future
- Integrated services, directorates and partner organisations to consider issues of housing standards, suitability, security of tenure, and affordability
- Improving practice through learning, evaluation, and building on existing good structure
- Equity and the reduction of inequalities in housing
- Active engagement with people and communities to understand their priorities
- Effective and efficient resource usage

Mark Leeman, Specialist in Housing Strategy, then spoke about the focus on rough sleepers and homelessness, pointing out that two people die every day in the UK from homelessness, and at least seven died in Somerset last year; the average age for rough sleepers is 42 years old, with a life expectancy of 44 years. They have extreme vulnerability, often due to childhood trauma. He noted that the diagram being viewed was a very simplified version of the Integrated Care System relating to homelessness, with the stated objective of collating the learning from the Homelessness Reduction Board, the Better Futures Programme, and the Make Every Adult Matter (MEAM) Approach to identify the opportunities for embedding systemic change around homelessness and to identify opportunities where homelessness can be prevented in future. He pointed out that one of the organisations on the chart, Creative Solutions, is an extensive multi-agency team working to create solutions for very vulnerable people; they need the support of this Board as well as directors of services, politicians, and commissioners. The request to this Board is that the learning gained from this work is utilised to change the way that prevention and intervention takes place. MEAM are experts in this matter, and on February 28 here at Deane House the next MEAM workshop will take place with Gavin Roberts, a nationally recognised systems expert, attending. All Board members are encouraged to attend in order to become part of improving the front-line system for these extremely vulnerable people.

Mark Leeman also discussed the second priority, which is the topic of independent living, the focus is on keeping people safe in their homes and able to maintain their independence in a home that is affordable and suitable for their needs, rather than entering the health and care networks. It also encompasses hospital discharge, so that they can return to their homes quickly; better use of the Better Care Fund; understanding demand and need for specialist accommodation; dementia; learning disabilities; and mental health, all of which need to be addressed further. It was pointed out that landlords are not equipped to support tenants with complex needs, as services aren't available to them to prevent such problems; and this issue desperately needs widespread discussion.

Other important elements of getting healthy housing into all policies includes:

- Health Needs Assessment (HNA) To inform the delivery of the strategic priorities, a baseline understanding of housing needs across Somerset is needed.
- Health Impact Assessment (HIA) A process for new developments that meet agreed criteria will contribute to maximising opportunities to improve health through healthy homes, although effective local policies of enforcement are also needed to work hand in hand.
- Workforce Planning Housing must be considered within this planning.

Lou Woolway stated that the request to this Board is to continue the level of work related to these issues, to define the work programme, and to bring these matters, when finalised, back to the Board for approval. It is also requested that there be an agreement to employ a systems approach via the 'systems thinking and leadership framework'. The main question is: What are the county's needs with respect to housing and what type long-term planning will be involved with those needs.

The Chair invited comments and questions from the Board. Cllr Slocombe raised the issue of minimum space standards, declaring that these need to be made part of Somerset's new housing as the lack of space can cause mental health problems. With respect to Fit for My Future, there is not enough preparation for the ageing of people in their homes, who ideally should be able to continue living independently in the same house. There should be "homes for life" where it is possible to install aids, wheelchairs, and other adaptations. She was reassured that there is an awareness of the need to prepare for life stages. Cllr Heather Shearer advised that the Strategic Somerset Housing Group works on this issue and is brilliant; she added that housing is involved in all care decisions and that the design of inter-generational housing with the ability to adapt through time is important. She mentioned that many different members of the County Council's executive will have a part to play in local and strategic planning; and she noted with respect to housing in workforce planning that the My Time to Care recruitment campaigns were already bearing results with many enquiries about employment in the care sector.

Lou Woolway stated that this Board needs to agree that, where there are problems, everyone will get involved; and Jonathan Higman agreed that this is exactly the place to have these discussions and work together. He said that this had been a very good conversation about how that can be done. The Chair suggested that conversations also need to be held with developers and those involved with local planning.

Cllr Andy Kendall addressed homelessness in his own area, speaking for those in the armed forces and others in Yeovil. Although the system appears to be working for most, he is concerned about certain individuals, noting that there are homeless people

in Yeovil who don't seem to have help to get off the streets. The Chair asked that the Councillor email the Executive in regard. Jai Vick, Head of Housing Services at Mendip District Council, stated that she will take Cllr Kendall's issue back to her team contacts; she observed that homelessness is very complex, and it is sometimes hard to convince the homeless to accept assistance. She advised that there are many people performing outreach to the homeless, but concerns can also be reported to StreetLink.org.uk, as that intelligence will then be passed on directly to the outreach teams.

Cllr Lucy Trimnell noted that there will be 44 new houses built without any outdoor space or gardens that are supposedly designed for families; it appears that developers actually promote the lack of space as a new way of living. This could be very detrimental, with young children pushed to play in parks where they could be vulnerable. Cllr Slocombe asked for Cllr Revan's involvement in instituting minimum standards throughout Somerset, as if this were to be made a countywide policy, developers would not be able to avoid it.

The recommendation was that the Health and Wellbeing Board & Integrated Care Partnership agreed:

- To define a set of health, care and housing principles which can be applied across all work in the county by relevant strategic and operational boards.
- To collate the learning from the Homelessness Reduction Board, Better Futures Programme and Make Every Adult Matter (MEAM) Approach to identify the opportunities for embedding systemic change around homelessness and identify opportunities where homelessness can be prevented in the future.
- To focus on enabling a person or family to maintain their independence in a home that is affordable and suitable for their needs (including the availability of necessary support services).
- To continue to develop these recommendations and to define the work programme further, with recommendations coming back to the committee in common for approval.

Work Programme – Agenda Item 10

Lou Woolway, Deputy Director of Public Health who manages the work programme, advised that the agendas for March and May will be fluid; March will have a Health and Care Strategy report and a report on the Integrated Care Strategy, and one more topic could be added.

Prof Trudi Grant, Director of Public Health, advised that the draft Terms of Reference need to be brought to this Board for discussion and agreement. She is also keen as the Board moves into a new structure to have a strategic level of conversation regarding a long-term plan. She would therefore welcome a conversation regarding the system-wide view on how we are working with our communities, and also one on possible priorities to take forward to the new Somerset Board. The Chair suggested that it might be beneficial to discuss this last topic on its own in an informal meeting.

Cllr Brian Hamilton advised that he had sent out to Board members a question via email regarding the change from the telephone network to all digital in 2023, which poses a risk to certain health systems and devices that use copper telephone lines and would need more than an hour's backup capacity in the case of power outages. He added that 91% of people don't even know about this planned change. Prof Grant advised that they were looking at systematic power outages under the Civil Contingencies Unit and with power suppliers, especially in vulnerable sites such as nursing homes and hospitals. It is a very good question, which she is happy was flagged by Cllr Hamilton, and she will return with a more detailed answer. ACTION

The Somerset Health and Wellbeing Board & Integrated Care Partnership noted the tentative Work Programme and potential future items.

Any Other Items of Business - Agenda Item 11

The Board noted that a briefing paper was earlier circulated to joint Board members entitled, "Review of Support for Speech Language Communication Needs (SLCN) in Early Years".

Cllr Adam Dance, Co-Vice Chair, advised that HIV Testing Week is taking place next week and communications will be sent out in regard.

The next meeting is scheduled for Monday 27 March 2023.

The meeting ended at 16:45

CHAIR